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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT  FB#%

The financial crisis has adversely affected the business of the Group.
Our revenue has dropped by 17% to approximately HK$52,502,000 and
our profit declined by 53% to approximately HK$1,874,000.

The drop in revenue was across all major geographical segments. While
we saw a stabilisation of markets in the later part of last financial year,
we do not expect a significant improvement in market environment in
the next six months.

To cope with the global economic downturn, the Group has implemented

the following initiatives:

— enhanced risk management

— tight control on expenses

— commitment to research and development and new product
development

—  focus on recruiting new customers in emerging markets

Our continual commitment in pioneering new technology and products
for the video surveillance market enables us to maintain market share
in the worst market downturn in recent years. We will maintain our
research and development spending and development schedule for new
and unique products. With better product range, we will be in a better
position to gain market share when market recovers.

Year 2009 marks the Group’s “15 years of Creative Vision”, the slogan
of our 15th Anniversary. While receiving many business and technology
awards during the years, we are particularly proud that several of our
technology and products are the first of their kind in the world. TeleEye
brand is identified with advanced technology and innovation worldwide.

We are cautiously optimistic about future business. We believe our
improved product range and our focus on emerging markets will bring

long term growth to the Group.

I am grateful to our dedicated colleagues, directors, shareholders and
business partners for their loyal support.

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 September 2009
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e VTR Zig

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2009, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$52,502,000, representing a decrease of about 17%
as compared with a turnover of approximately HK$62,898,000 of
the preceding year. Profit attributable to equity holders for the year
ended 30 June 2009 amounted to approximately HK$1,874,000 (2008:
HK$3,997,000). Basic earnings per share for the year ended 30 June
2009 was HK$1.04 cents (2008: HK$2.22 cents). The drop in profit
during the year is mainly attributable to the decrease in sales and
foreign exchange loss.

As a result of the Group’s tight control on all overhead costs, overall
operating costs had decreased by approximately 4% to HK$24,789,000
as compared to HK$25,847,000 for the year ended 30 June 2008. The
Group’s balance sheet remains strong with substantial liquidity.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Europe

Europe is still the largest market of the Group, whose turnover for the
year ended 30 June 2009 amounted to approximately HK$13,578,000
(2008: HK$19,791,000) representing 26% (2008: 31.4%) of the Group’s
turnover. TeleEye Europe Limited (a subsidiary in the UK) operates
as a direct selling office commencing since April 2004. It contributed
significant effort in the provision of technical and marketing support
for the region. Segment contribution was approximately HK$2,066,000
(2008: HK$3,137,000).

Other Asian Countries

Turnover for Other Asian countries excluding Hong Kong and
Singapore, for the year ended 30 June 2009 amounted to approximately
HK$9,918,000 (2008: HK$9,793,000) or 19% (2008: 15.6%) of
the Group’s turnover. Segment contribution was approximately
HK$2,031,000 (2008: HK$1,742,000).

Africa

Turnover for Africa for the year ended 30 June 2009 decreased by 3%
to approximately HK$9,362,000 (2008: HK$9,678,000). It accounted
for 18% (2008: 15.4%) of the Group’s turnover. Segment contribution
decreased to approximately HK$3,364,000 (2008: HK$3,791,000).

Middle East

Turnover for Middle East for the year ended 30 June 2009 amounted
to approximately HK$9,095,000 (2008: HK$9,397,000) or 17% (2008:
14.9%) of the Group’s turnover. The segment reported a contribution of
approximately HK$2,809,000 (2008: HK$3,375,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Hong Kong

Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2009 decrease to approximately
HK$4,936,000 (2008: HK$7,528,000) or 9% (2008: 12%) of the Group’s
turnover. Segment contribution was approximately HK$1,878,000 (2008:
HK$1,797,000).

Singapore

Turnover for Singapore for the year ended 30 June 2009 was dropped
to approximately HK$3,653,000 (2008: HK$4,729,000) or 7% (2008:
7.5%) of the Group’s turnover. The segment reported a contribution of
approximately HK$178,000 (2008: HK$474,000).

Others

Other geographical segments included the Americas and Australia.
Turnover for the year ended 30 June 2009 amounted to approximately
HK$1,960,000 (2008: HK$1,982,000) or 4% (2008: 3.2%) of the Group’s
total turnover. The segment reported a contribution of approximately
HK$585,000 (2008: HK$454,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's business suffered substantially from the global financial
crisis which is a combination of bank failures, credit crunches and
currency crisis, happened all at once. In view of the abrupt changes,
the management quickly adopted a defensive strategy. We reviewed and
reduced marketing and other expenses, closely monitored trade credits
to avoid bad debts and implemented price and incentive programs for
markets suffering from currency drop of more than 20%. We negotiated
price reduction from suppliers to lower production costs. As a result, the
Group’s financial position is strengthened in preparation for a prolong
global recession which may last for years.

In this time of difficulty, however, we strategically maintain our
research and development spending so as to further widen our leading
edge in video surveillance market. As digital technology becomes
more popular, video surveillance is undergoing rapid development in
mega-pixel camera technology, large scale video management solution
and video analytic techniques. Only companies who master these new
technologies can gain market shares when market recovers.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e VTR Zig

Product Development

In addition to the popular RX series of professional video recording
servers, during the year the Group has launched its CX series of entry
level video recording servers as well as the NXR series of network
recording solution for NX network cameras and a new version of Central
Monitoring Station Software. These new products enlarge TeleEye’s
product range to cover both professional and entry level surveillance
applications. NXR solution also strengthens our entry into the network
camera market.

The new products are powered by our unique SMAC-M multi-stream
video technology. As a result, many powerful features such as mobile
viewing, optimal video transmission, remote video playback and
excellent recording capabilities are unique to TeleEye products.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

We believe the worst situation has gone and the global market has
stabilised. The video surveillance market as a whole will slowly
recover. However, business opportunities are emerging in this period of
rapid advancement of video surveillance technology. The Group is well
positioned to capture these opportunities by introducing technologically
advanced products and solutions in the coming year. In addition, we
will also focus on developing new sales channels in emerging markets.

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2009, the Group employed 38 (2008: 39) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 13 (2008: 19) full time employees in
the PRC and overseas offices. The Group’s staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and retirement benefits
scheme contribution amounted to approximately HK$16,034,000 (2008:
HK$15,666,000).

Employees are remunerated in accordance with individual’s
responsibility and performance, which remain competitive with the
prevailing market rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical insurance,
retirement benefit scheme and discretionary bonus are offered to all
employees. Share options are granted at the directors’ discretion and
under the terms and conditions of share option schemes.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

The Group mainly used its internal resources to finance its
operations during the year. The Group had bank balances, deposits
and cash of approximately HK$23,459,000 as at 30 June 2009 (2008:
HK$17,962,000). The Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage of bank
and other borrowings and long-term debt over total assets, as at 30 June
2009 was approximately 1% (2008: 3%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not enter into any new significant investment during the
year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

In the early of March 2009, the Group had disposed of a subsidiary
engaged in sales and marketing of audio and video monitoring system
in Singapore for a cash consideration of SGD6,000 equivalent to
approximately HK$31,000. Save as aforesaid, the Group did not make
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies in this year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2009, the Group did not have any charge on its assets
(2008: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Up to the current moment, the Group does not have any other plan for
material investments or capital assets.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were
substantially denominated in either Hong Kong, US dollars and British
Pounds. During the year under review, the Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes (2008: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2009, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities
(2008: Nil).
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT  #3f & ri 5o A B féif

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Chan Chok Ki, aged 54, is the founder and Chief Executive
Officer of TeleEye Holdings Limited and an adjunct professor of The
City University of Hong Kong (“City University”). TeleEye Group was
Hong Kong’s first university spin-off company to become a public listed
company. Prior to managing the Group on a full-time basis in 2001,
Prof. Chan had lectured at the City University for fifteen years. He has
published extensively in signal and image processing fields and has
received numerous awards including the IEEE Third Millennium Award
in 2000. In 1996, the EDN ASIA Magazine also named him an “EDN
ASIA Innovator” for his contributions in image compression research.
TeleEye Group has also won numerous awards in product innovation
and business areas including the Gold Award (Security Category) 2007
by HKEIA and the 2007 Hong Kong Top Brand Award from the Hong
Kong Brand Development Council and the Chinese Manufacturer’s
Association.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit, aged 41, is a founder and the Chief Marketing Officer
of the Group. He has extensive knowledge on digital signal processing
and telecommunications technologies. He is presently responsible for
formulation and implementation of marketing strategies, product pricing
and positioning, and strategic management of channel distribution for
the Group.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours and a
PhD degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

Mr. Ho Ka Ho, aged 37, is a founder and the Engineering Director
of the Group. He is in charge of the engineering department of the
Group and is responsible for product design, quality control, research
and development of the Group. Mr. Ho has expertise in computer
architecture, software engineering and digital signal processing.

Mr. Ho obtained his bachelor of engineering degree in computer
engineering with first class honours and master of science degree in
electronic engineering from the City University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, aged 51, is a founder and a research and
development consultant of the Group, responsible for spearheading the
research and development team on a part-time basis with particular
focus on product design and development. Dr. C.F. Chan is a research
veteran in the digital signal processing and speech compression
technology.

Dr. C.F. Chan is presently an associate professor of the Department of
Electronic Engineering at the City University. He is also a Director of
Signal Communications Holdings Limited and Signal Communications
Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

In 1998, he was named “EDN Asia Innovator” by the EDN Asia
Magazine for his contribution in speech compression technology.

He received all his bachelor, master and PhD degrees in electronic
engineering from The University of Essex, England.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Hon To, David, aged 61, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company who was appointed in January 2007. Mr. Yu
is a founder and Director of MCL Capital Limited (formerly known as
Management Capital Limited), a Hong Kong-based financial advisory
and direct investment firm. He also sits on the boards of several
other listed and private companies in Hong Kong. He was formerly a
partner of an international accounting firm with extensive experience
in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Prof. Siu Wan Chi, aged 59, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director who was appointed in September 2000. He is presently Chair
Professor of the Department of Electronic and Information Engineering
and Director of the Centre for Signal Processing, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He was the Head of the same department and
Dean of Engineering Faculty between 1994 and 2002.

Prof. Siu has held numerous public offices in the academic field
including member of editorial board of renowned journals in the U.S.
and the PRC, general chair of world-class international conferences,
and chairman of academic/professional assessment panels. Prof. Siu
obtained his master of philosophy degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, and the PhD degree from Imperial College of Science,
Technology and Medicine, University of London, UK.

Prof. Ching Pak Chung, aged 55, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director who was appointed in October 2004. Prof. Ching is presently
Pro-Vice-Chancellor and Director of the Shun Hing Institute of
Advanced Engineering of The Chinese University of Hong Kong
(“CUHK?”). He was elected Dean of Engineering from 1998 till end of
2003. Prof. Ching pursued his studies at the University of Liverpool of
United Kingdom. He received his bachelor’s degree (first class honors)
and doctoral degree in 1977 and 1981 respectively. Then, he continued
his research at School of Electrical Engineering of the University of
Bath and was back to Hong Kong in 1982, when he started teaching
at the Department of Electronic Engineering of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. In 1984, Prof. Ching joined the Department of
Electronic Engineering of CUHK and was promoted to Chair Professor
in 1999.

Prof. Ching has all along participated actively in various professional
activities. Besides serving in different capacities for the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers (HKIE), and the Institute of Electrical and
Electronic Engineers (IEEE), he was an elected Council Member of the
Institution of Electrical Engineers (IEE) between 2002 and 2005. Prof.
Ching also devotes his time on public services. He was a member of the
Consumer Council, Chairman of the Hong Kong Accreditation Advisory
Board and a member of the Electrical Safety Advisory Committee.
He is currently member of the Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Governing Council, Panel Member of the Research Grants Council of
Hong Kong SAR, and member of the Copyright Tribunal.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 15 of
the GEM Listing Rules (the “Code”) takes effect from 1 January 2005.
Except for the deviations as disclosed on this report, the Company
has complied with the Code by establishing a formal and transparent
procedures to protect and maximise the interests of shareholders
throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors
for the year ended 30 June 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors, one Non-
Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director are set out
on the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall strategic
development of the Group. It also monitors the financial performance
and internal control of the Group’s business operations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The Board delegates day-to-day
activities to the management with department heads responsible for
different aspects of the business. Management is required to present an
annual budget and any proposal for major investments and changes in
business strategies for the Board’s approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board
meetings. They are also serving on Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Through their active participation, they provide their
valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and the
Committees on which they serve so that the management process can be
critically reviewed and controlled.
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In compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-Executive Directors
and at least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Company. There were four regular board
meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2009. Details of the
attendance of the Board are as follows:

2y 25 SFCRI FE A bl BRI ) 28 5.05(0) B () > AR
FACEE=ABIERNTES > HEPRDL— AR
A BN HE AR LG U B R o A
N ) S A 42 28 ST A T o AR R R A TR
RINYER 5.00 {6k 1 85 7 % L A R 08 S M 1) 47 R -
AN R B T S R AT R L L o

EHGGREEGHEDLINR - DI A A A 3
W MR B - MEZREIJUVESNA = H IR B
FELRITINRENERGGR - AREFGHR
FEREAE

Attended/Eligible to attend

Name of Directors HYPEH WA R

Executive Directors K e )

Prof. Chan Chok Ki BRAE S S 414
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (FEHA TECRHE)

Dr. Ma Chi Kit BB L 0/4

Mr. Ho Ka Ho IR 414

Non-Executive Director ety g

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat BRAT S5 L 414

Independent Non-Executive Directors B JEBAT WG

Mr. Yu Hon To, David BT R 4/4

Prof. Siu Wan Chi EEPINEE e 3/4

Prof. Ching Pak Chung RO Bz 4/4

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and
formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and monitor
the business and financial performances and discuss the quarterly,
half-yearly and annual results, as well as discuss and decide on other
significant matters. The company secretary records the proceedings
of each Board meeting by keeping minutes, including the record of all
decisions by the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting
views expressed (if any). Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all
Directors for comment and approval as soon as practicable after the
meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
request by any Director.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing.

At present, Prof. Chan Chok Ki is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group’s business. Prof. Chan has been both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since its incorporation. The
Board considers that Prof. Chan has in-depth knowledge in the Group’s
business and can make appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently.
The combination of the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
can effectively formulate and implement the Group’s strategies. The
Board also consider that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company as the Board of Directors, which comprises experienced and
high caliber individuals, meets regularly to discuss issues affecting the
operations of the Group. The Group considered that, at its present size,
there is no imminent need to segregate the role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.

Non-Executive Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code Provision
A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a causal vacancy
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after their appointment, and every Director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

At present, the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. In
addition, not every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Directors are subject to rotation in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company (that at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third, shall retire from office) provided that notwithstanding
anything therein, the Chairman of the Board and/or the managing
Director of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of Directors to retire in each year. As such, with the
exception of the Chairman, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The
Board considers that the continuity of office of the Chairman provides
the Group a strong and consistent leadership and is of great importance
to the smooth operations of the Group. Therefore, for stability reasons,
there is no imminent need to amend the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Annual Report 2009 4

FW B AT BRI

SFRIMGRSCAAHE > E W RATEUR R 2 A @ H 5
BH o T AN H R — A AT o F2 R RAT B 2 IR
R 2y > 3 A E T TR AT o

BURE > BRAFRBAR AN 7 B ARAT B R > KA
HEMERG RAEEZ X - MBIR A AR FGE
S PLAR — EARAE AN Rl 2 T AT B AR - 3
FERR > REOREAREBEEFARA TR > 6
500 BIVBRE R AT A R R PR E o B PR R AT AR
Bz O R A MOt e KO A 4 B 2 e o S
BINER R o BLATREAS & s S AR F A B
Z B RE ) R e e 2 7 - REIRIE g (Pl AR B
B Z BN AL 2 H Bk > DLl B AR
B EE L HH o AR EHB R 2 I
30 V)75 B0 B R R ATBURER A

PR

SRR SCAALBUE > FR AT S0 ZAEEA 18 EAE
Wy W/HIEZERE o STRIRSCA 42 BUE » BT A B iR
i i I 22 R T Y AT 2 R AE 2 AR AR 2 5
PR b e Sz IR B i A 0 T S (LR AR E
EMIRAL ) HE D = F i EBE K -

B - 857 IR AT F 0 BAT I MR E AR M2
MR AS 2% 7] 22 % ) AL o R A0 B 2 W o (ELAR AT %
J AT o BLAh - Sl IR A T H A = AR R (E
BAL— W o TS IMRIEA L A 2 4w ALK A A A
i (E AR AT O B i RO AF R & | B =02 —2
o (B 5 O E I R = AR AU (EOR
KR =0y 2 — 28R ) ZFORAR) - MERRE L n A 4E
fIRLE > HE e T R B 4 ) A 2
TAYE AT AT R W 05 R <2 W 2B AT S mH A T E 4
BARHE R BH K o B - BREFSS - Pl HR
PEAR A ] 24 ) A A R A R (ER AT o el
T T B Ao 0 2 B 2 A R R {3k R R T B AR
S ARG IEEE B E R o FiL o ER
fasE A M8 IR EAERT AL F 2 A R LA
FEAHA -

TeleEye Holdings Limited FHIR¥ERA RA R

13



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e S gTiE: A

14

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
No Nomination Committee was established by the Company.

The Board is mainly responsible for identifying suitable candidates
for members of the Board when there is a vacancy or any additional
Director is considered necessary. The Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidate for determining the suitability to
the Group on the basis of his qualifications, experience and background.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is supported by
two Board Committees. Each Committee has its defined scope of duties
and terms of reference and the Committee members are empowered
to make decisions on matters within the terms of reference of each
Committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
mandatory provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly
reports and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comment
thereon to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee will
also be responsible for reviewing and supervising the financial
reporting and internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit
Committee has four members comprising the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Hon To, David, Prof.
Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Dr. Chan Cheung Fat. Mr. Yu Hon To, David, is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results for the year
ended 30 June 2009 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
It has also reviewed the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2009 with management and the Company’s external
auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board. The Audit
Committee had held four meetings during the current financial
year. Individual attendance of each Committee member at these

FREZAGUFAAERERE TLIFEAHA
= H R R AR AL T S b 6 o
IR E B B e AR 2 R 1 SN A S ] 4
TRFBIVEARNH Z A B LA B RS AL RS
Ko MR EFGRN - RAMBAEER - %
BZAEEERRBETNREHE SEEFNA
T W% Sk B R 5 R I L

meetings is as follows:

Name of Directors

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Prof. Siu Wan Chi

Prof. Ching Pak Chung

Attended/Eligible to attend

Wk H YR <g 4it)
Pty E

Bk B L 4/4
W I PUAT g

AT RS AR 4/4
[ BINGE€od 3/4
B #d% 4/4

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings,
draft and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for comments,
approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the Audit Committee are granted the authority
to full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the
Company and any employees, consultants and advisers they may,
from time to time, wish to consult.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

. Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and
providing advice and comments thereon to the Board. In this
regard:

. members of the Committee must liaise with the Board,
senior management and the person appointed as the
Company’s qualified accountant and the Committee
must meet, at least once a year, with the Company’s
auditors; and
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. the Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s qualified accountant, compliance
officer or auditors.

. Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial
reporting and internal control procedures.

Other duties of the Audit Committee are set out in specific terms
of reference which is posted on the Group’s website.

(2) Remuneration Committee

According to the Code, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee in September 2005 and the primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate and
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely, Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching
Pak Chung, and one Non-Executive Director, namely, Dr. Chan
Cheung Fat. The Chairman of the Committee is Dr. Chan Cheung
Fat. It is scheduled to meet at least once a year and the quorum
necessary for the transaction of business is two.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
financial year under review. The Committee has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of service contracts of the Directors
and considers that the existing terms of the service contracts are
fair and reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the Group’s website.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and any question of
resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee is to be negotiated
with management of the Company, and annually analyzed for the
Audit Committee’s review. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by the external
auditors in relation to their independence.
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The remuneration in respect of services provided by the external
auditors for the year ended 30 June 2009 and 2008 is analysed as
follows:

Annual audit AT FE A%
Non-audit services IR BURT
— quarterly/interim result review — R P AR R

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements and the
auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report
on page 24 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal
control system. The Company convened meetings periodically to
discuss financial, operational and risk management control. The
audit committee has discussed the internal control process with the
management of the Company during the financial year ended 30 June
20009.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good corporate
governance can safeguard the effective allocation of resources and
safeguard shareholders’ interests. The Company will keep on reviewing
its corporate governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the
required practices and standards including the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 26.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of share capital of the Company are set out in Note 23 to the
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option schemes of the Company are set out in Note
24 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2009:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 27% of the
Group’s total turnover.

(i) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for 16% and 48%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases (not
including purchases of items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates (within the meaning of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”)) or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
as at 30 June 2009 comprised share premium and retained profits
in aggregate amounting to approximately HK$23,214,000 (2008:
HK$23,364,000) provided that, after distribution, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Non-Executive Director:
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Prof. Siu Wan Chi

Prof. Ching Pak Chung

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Prof. Siu Wan Chi will retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Non-Executive Director is the period up to
his retirement or rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of one year commencing 1 April 2001,
which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either
party by giving six months’ prior written notice.

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat has entered into a two-year consultancy agreement
with the Company commencing 1 April 2001 under which he has agreed
to act as a research and development consultant to the Group on a part-
time basis. The service period of such agreement has been extended
and will continue unless and until terminated by either party by giving
three months’ prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE

OPTIONS

At 30 June 2009, the interests of the Directors and their associates in
the shares and share options of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

were as follows:

Long position in shares:

(@ Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Name of Directors

WP IEH

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
BRAE R Bz

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat
PR 1 1

(b) Share options

Name of Directors

WP REH

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
BRAEEE B

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
PRl

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
R Z ek

20 TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR KA B2 ]

Capacity

56

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
M EHIE A (1)

Held by controlled corporation (Note 1)
M A A (1)

Capacity
-gils

Beneficial owner (Note 2)
HmEa A (Hit2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)
HaAN (Hf7t2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)
HaAN (Hf7t2)
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Number of
issued
ordinary
shares held
s Rak £
WmB A

104,000,000

104,000,000

(b)  JE B
Number of
share

options held
Fi A I B H

2,700,000

2,160,000

2,044,000

Percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company
A 4wl LB AT
JBe AT Ay Be

57.7%

57.7%

Number of
underlying
shares

il Liig g

2,700,000

2,160,000

2,044,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHARE

OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(1) These shares, representing approximately 57.7% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30 June 2009, are held by Etin City Limited,
which is owned by Etin Tech Limited and CityU Enterprises Limited in
the proportion of 70% and 30%, respectively. Etin Tech Limited is owned
by Prof. Chan Chok Ki, Dr. Chan Cheung Fat, Dr. Ma Chi Kit and Mr. Ho
Ka Ho in the proportion of approximately 44.3%, 34.3%, 14.3% and 7.1%,
respectively. As Prof. Chan Chok Ki and Dr. Chan Cheung Fat are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power in
general meetings of Etin Tech Limited, they are deemed to be interested
in the entire shares in the Company held by Etin City Limited.

(2)  The share options are granted to the Directors pursuant to the share option
schemes adopted by the Company, details of which are set out in Note 24
to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a subsidiary
held by a Director in trust for the Group, at 30 June 2009, none of the
Directors of the Company nor their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option schemes as described in Note 24 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or children
under the age of eighteen, had any rights to subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in Note 30 to the
financial statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO discloses no person as having a notifiable interest or short position
in the issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2009.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
Note 24 to the financial statements.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

The directors believe that none of the directors nor the management
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interests which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Avrticles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has four members comprising the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yu Hon To, David,
Prof. Siu Wan Chi and Prof. Ching Pak Chung and one non-executive
Director, namely Dr. Chan Cheung Fat.
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The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports and half-yearly
report and to provide advice and comment thereon to the Board. The
audit committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising
the financial reporting and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this report and has
provided advice and comments thereon. The audit committee held four
meetings during the year ended 30 June 20009.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has three members comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Prof. Siu Wan Chi and
Prof. Ching Pak Chung, and one non-executive Director, namely, Dr.
Chan Cheung Fat.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate
and make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the financial
year under review. The Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of service contracts of the Directors and considers that
the existing terms of the service contracts are fair and reasonable.

AUDITORS

The accompanying financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng who will retire at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On 7 December 2006, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as
the auditors of the Company and Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
were appointed on 7 December 2006 by the Directors to fill the casual
vacancy so arising.

On behalf of the Board
Prof. Chan Chok Ki
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 September 2009
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'fif ? ,1_ ﬁq& $ % 9 31/F, Gloucester Tower Fis
I LB Hodgson Impey Cheng The Landmark PR 1L
11 Pedder Street, Central B HE Y
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong R AT 31 1k
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS T HORE B A B v B K

LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 26 to 83, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 June 2009, and
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
30 June 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 18 September 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &8s«

For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

2009 2008
ZRBEBIAE e YIS
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt it T#C FiB 0
Revenue A 52,502 62,898
Cost of sales FH A LA (26,791) (32,977)
Gross profit EF| 25,711 29,921
Other income HApthlg A 8 768 564
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ky 8 AR (10,129) (11,814)
Administrative expenses TE (10,186) (9,427)
Research and development expenditure F 5T e % e S 1 (4,474) (4,606)
Profit before taxation o o i ) 9 1,690 4,638
Income tax credit/(expense) FRAgBIEE R, () 1 86 (620)
Profit for the year ZNAE JE F1) 1,776 4,018
Attributable to: SN

Equity holders of the Company AN T IR RERR A A 1,874 3,997
Minority interests oS e RO 2 (98) 21
1,776 4,018

Earnings per share B Il 4 12
— Basic — A 1.04 centsfili 2.22 centsflll
— Diluted — P 1.04 centsfili 2.20 centsflll
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

A R AR

At 30 June 2009 A FFJUHERNH =1TH

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capitalised development costs
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Amount due to a minority shareholder
Tax payables

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Deferred tax liability

Net assets
Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to equity holders of the

Company
Minority interests

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements on pages 26 to 83 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 September

2009 and are signed on its behalf by:

W E
Wi ~ Wbs Lot
BREAEARL
Ak R

B
&
B ST SR 5 % A B WAk
WATHIGR LB &

BN
B ARF B e Al R A5
B A /D BB SRR IR
8 A5 B T

UL B R (E
A E WO E AR

B Al
R SEBEIH A
B A

B At
Je A
{4t

AR FIBMER A N 2
&

D BB R AR

Aot o

PROF. CHAN CHOK K Bl fi: 3 34%
DIRECTOR #%#

2009 2008

ZRBIAE TEBE A

NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Hta# T T oo
13 983 1,643
14 1,416 977
16 1,305 4,179
3,704 6,799

17 6,403 7,659
18 6,076 8,353
19 23,459 17,962
35,938 33,974

20 4,006 4,553
21 — 419
200 334

4,206 5,306

31,732 28,668

35,436 35,467

26 314 271
35,122 35,196

23 1,803 1,803
33,586 33,558

35,389 35,361
(267) (165)

35,122 35,196

5526 2 83 H Z 45 A MBS I R A F g it —F LI

JUA /N B A RETIED - 36 il T3 #EHRE

FEEE

MR. HO KA HO % %564
DIRECTOR #%#
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BALANCE SHEET

B AR

28

At 30 June 2009 A FFJUHERNH =1TH

Non-current asset
Investment in a subsidiary

Current assets
Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Bank balances

Current liability
Other payables

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

W E
TR A m 2 B
B &
JH Al ik

B S B 2~ ) I
BATHER

B AR
HoAb A 3K

UL ) 7 4
B A
B KA
P&
it

Aot 2

PROF. CHAN CHOK K Bl fi: R #4%
DIRECTOR #%

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R
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NOTES
it

15

22
19

23
25

2009 2008
ZRBEBIAE e YIS
HK$’000 HK$7000
T F#or
10 10

67 68
21,751 21,652
4,147 4,119
25,965 25,839
958 682
25,007 25,157
25,017 25,167
1,803 1,803
23,214 23,364
25,017 25,167

MR. HO KA HO %5564
DIRECTOR ##



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  &ifHisss ik

For the year ended 30 June 2009 # % “ZFZJUHNH =T HIE4EE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

s B R A A
Investment
Share Share  Translation revaluation Special Accumulated Minority
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
HHE AL . . S .
BA bR ARG il AR Rabes M Bk LEil
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T Tt TH#T T T T TH#T Tt TH#T
(Note)
(Wit
At 1 July 2007 e S 2
+A—H 1,802 21,638 (28) 983 14,990 (7,649) 31,483 (212) 31,271
Exchange differenceson IR FEHANERS 2
translation of overseas I I 1 A 2
operations T £ % — - 8 - - - 8 2% 4
Loss on fair value changes A ik & £ &
of available-for-sale INTERES
investments B - - - (136) — = (136) - (136)
Netincome/ (expense)  EHERMEL AL
recognised directly A/ (B
in equity i = = 8 (136) — — (128) 26 (102)
Profit for the year AR — — — = = 3,997 3,997 21 4,018
Total recognised income/ G EEREFR 2 A/
(expense) for the year (B37) 4 — — 8 (136) — 3,997 3,869 47 3,916
Issue of ordinary shares 7 (i e
upon exercise of share R
options 1 8 — — — — 9 — 9
At 30 June 2008 R-ZEFNE
AVERH:! 1,803 21,646 (273) 847 14,990 (3652) 35,361 (165) 35,196
Exchange differences on [ i AMER 2 i
translation of overseas HiiEEZ
operations T £ % = = (348) - - - (348) A (327)
Loss on fair value changes A (k&£ &
of available-for-sale ATEES
investments B = = = (1,048) = = (1,048) = (1,048)
Net (expense)/income HHR G R
recognised directly (B30) /WA
in equity ot - - (349) (L049) . - (1,396) 2 (L375)
Profit for the year AR AP — — — - - 1,874 1874 (98) 1,776
Transfer to profit or loss on ¢t & A[ftkth &
sale of available-for-sale  f R HE %
investments Hi - = = (461) = = (461) = (461)
Total recognised (expense)/ A4 FERE T
income for the year (B3) /A % — = (348) (1,509) = 1,874 7 (17) (60)
Disposal of a subsidiary /& & 7
(Note 27) W3£27) — = il = = = il (25) (14)
At 30 June 2009 REZTNE
AiESH:! 1,803 21,646 (610) (662 14,090 (L778) 35389 (267) 35122
Note: Mtk -

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the aggregate
of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a
group reorganisation in April 2001 and the nominal value of the share capital
issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ST

For the year ended 30 June 2009 # % ~ %%

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of capitalised development
costs
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Fair value gain from equity on disposal
of available-for-sale investments
Provision for obsolete goods
Reversal of provision for obsolete goods
Write down of inventories
Allowance for loan to an associate
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Bad debts written off
Dividend income
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables

Decrease in amount due from an associate

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
Overseas tax paid

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

JUEAH =1 HIEFEE

BB

IR ot i )

BT FUIE H A i
BRMAEARLZ
3

Y3 ~ Wb Kesiti 2
s

S Rk R 2 AR
AP ER

R L

R A 1 )

A7 B
TS A R AR R
SRR AR

e B A

FLBWA
HEYIZE - s M2
JE518

B BB 2w 2 R

REBEeSBI 2 KEHENE

fEEWD

JHRE A B R e T A B W ki b
(3G Hm)

JRE VALY 2 ) R TR D

JRRE AT I SR o L A 8 A5t 3k
o

W)/

REKERE 2B E
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SEREZY AL

Annual Report 2009 4t

2009 2008

ZRBEBIAE BT AR

NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt T F#or
1,690 4,638

555 1,268

776 672

(461) —

— 70

(141) —

110 1,657

— 1

405 13

81 560

(83) (136)

(140) (368)

70 —

27 5 —
2,867 8,375

1,287 1,578

1,791 (2,361)

— 13

(547) 655

5,398 8,260

140 368

@) (15)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

WA B ER

For the year ended 30 June 2009 # % ~ %%

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend income received

Disposal of a subsidiary

Increase in capitalised development costs

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-
sale investments

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment to a minority shareholder
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ON
TRANSLATION

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash

JUEAH =1 HIEFEE

HARBREHZ
Bl &S

ide
2R B A

B e 23 )
BRI A E AL I
e EREZ
iREE el
HAEYISE - RS Kk
JREE /e

SEAMIZE - W B s fhi

A (AR B8 B8 2

Bl &

B EH
Ii] 7 IO B2 K
BEAT M B 2 BT A5 K E

S R T e SR 2
Bl &

Bl RBLESEY
54 81

BHEEZ
JE 58,7 7

RAERI Z Bl K
RS

AR Z Bl K
RS
BIERAT 45 Bk KB &

2009 2008

ZRBEBIAE e YIS

NOTE HK$’000 HK$7000
Mt T F#or
5,534 8,613

83 125

27 (320) —
(994) (798)

1,826 —

7 3

(327) (1,666)

275 (2,336)

(419) (83)

— 9

(419) (74)

5,390 6,203

107 33

17,962 11,726

23,459 17,962
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 5 0 ¢ W ik

For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding company
is Etin Tech Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BV1”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 15.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 &
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their
interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  WF# 8t bk

For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs *

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 2

Presentation of Financial Statements 3

Borrowing Costs ®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements *

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation 2

Eligible Hedged Items *

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters °

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate ®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations 3

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions °

Business Combinations *

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments @

Operating Segments 3

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate *

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation ©

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners 4

Transfers of Assets from Customers ’

2. MBI B s i) A e B I (T
5 0 0 e 0 ) (A

A S [ Sl A0 £ LR T 8 2 A A AELAT) OR AR R
I S AAERT R - ERT B R -

T A S R B s B i YR RN 2 B

(EFTA)
A B R R LA A B
(EFTA) HE QI 2 BUgE?

A e sk 2 51
5 198 (RAEFD)
THERHEE AR

23 BE (RAEET)
BG4 6 KB IR
27 B (RB1EET)

FUSEFHERIZE  nIT B E A LR R IE R
RWHEBFBEFT  EAZE(ES
HERIZE 1 5%

(E&TA)

FWGFIERSE AEKEWIEE

39 5% (BRI 4%)

Fr s BAFS IS HE R B R IR AN 2 RO ER e S
55158 (BRTA)

Fis G R E AR
RSS90 s A 4 ) B A
GRHMERIZE 279 HEAFZ

(EFTA) P& RAR 2

B s BATS A5 E R B AR A B kg 2

55258 (BRTA)

Fr vk BATS SR A5 H 4 1) DABR 4 35 S AR B
E2BR(BRTA) B GS

Tt A i A HE R 25 P

55 3% (A8 157T)

B s PAES IR AGHE R A5 B Rl TR 2 O 3
55758 (BFRTA)

B s PS5 MR A8 A J

5% 858

s (B PR ATSTE A BB 5 2 2 k2
HEBEEE)

FEREEE 1595

Fils (BB E SR ERFREZ 'Y
WwafEZ B )

RS 16 9%

s (BB A A IRFE Bl e e 4
HEBEEE)

FEREEE 1795

Fils (BB EE AXFEEEET
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R 18 9%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 5 0 ¢ W ik

For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except for the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009,
1 July 2009 and 1January 2010, as appropriate

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 1 January 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

! Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or after
1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 5 0 ¢ W i

For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expenses
over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 5 0 ¢ W i

For the year ended 30 June 2009 # % ~ %%

3.

JUEAH =1 HIEFEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part
of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financials statements. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as
a separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with
in equity.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will
be recovered through future commercial activity. The resultant
asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life, and
carried at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to income statement in the
period in which it is incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment losses for tangible
and intangible assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated as at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, of which
interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as loans and receivables and
not held for trading purpose. The Group designated certain listed
equity securities as available-for-sales financial assets.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment
at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 30 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other
than those financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and amount due to a minority shareholder) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to present
value where the effect is material.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share options granted to employees, the fair value of services
received determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The effect
of the change in estimate, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (continued)
For share options granted to suppliers in exchange for goods
or services, they are measured at the fair value of the goods or
services received. The fair values of the goods or services are
recognised as expenses immediately, unless the goods or services
qualify for recognise as assets. Corresponding adjustments have
been made to equity.

For share options granted by the Company which were vested
before 1 January 2005, the fair value of those share options are
not recognised as expenses in accordance with the transitional
provision of HKFRS 2.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible assets
that are not yet ready for use (see the accounting policy in
respect of intangible assets above))

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis at each
balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items especially technology solution system
identified that are of minimal resale value due to technological
changes. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventory based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the balance sheet date and
makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined by
the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the capitalised development costs
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
The Group carries out an impairment review assessment on a
product-by-product basis in respect of the capitalised development
costs at the balance sheet date and no impairment is made for the
years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(@) Categories of financial instruments
2009
Financial assets

Available-for-sale investments 1] fit i £ 4% &
JHRE WA B e LAt JEE Ak
SRATAEBR

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables TE AT B s % At JRE AT 2k

5. ZRTH
(a) 4@ HAHE
ZRFBAE
B
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
£k B GRS S Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T# I T#iL
— 1,305 1,305
4,353 — 4,353
23,455 — 23,455
27,808 1,305 29,113
LA
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
DA S AR 2
o BEL
HK$’000
T#x
4,006
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5 BT HR(E)
(@) Categories of financial instruments (continued) (a) 4k T Hr%i(4)
2008 ZET)\E
Financial assets B
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
SRR EYGR T S RUE A 5T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Fior Fior Fio
Available-for-sale investments 7 it i €5 4% & — 4,179 4,179
Trade and other receivables JRE A B R % EL Al MR i 2k 8,353 — 8,353
Bank balances PATHIER 17,962 — 17,962
26,315 4,179 30,494
Financial liabilities BB
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
DIESH A G 2
E oA=L
HK$’000
T
Trade and other payables JARE AT W % At JRE AT 7k 4,553
Amount due to a minority shareholder JREAST 0 B BRI 419
4,972
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (o) %5l B 45 B H B B BOR

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, bank
balances, trade and other payables and amount due to a
minority shareholder. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 67% of the Group’s sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst
almost 36% of costs are denominated in the group entity’s
respective functional currencies.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting
date are as follows:

5. 4&mIH(4)
(b) VA5 e I 4 B SR (4
U
S B

A 45 [ T B O 2 F AN AT B
i A 2 [0 1 S A1 LB o A 4R 6 S AR
K167% 2L AFME X EMEB 6
B LA Z BB > 1T 4T 36% 2 A
ARDISE M E A H 2 ThRE BRI -

P B AR DU R A &
W E R G RECIRAEEDT

Liabilities Assets
fifi ¥
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZRRNAE e AR ZRRIAE e JAGE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#L TH#IT T#x Fioc
GBP e 343 1,087 3,337 6,021

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

A 45 ) S A A B b O o R
LG D) B SN LR o Sl R AT
LIRS LB
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JUEAH =1 HILFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in
GBP.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% (2008: 5%) increase and decrease in the Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant foreign currency. 5% (2008:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchanges rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes bank balances within the Group where
the denomination of the bank balances is in a currency
other than the functional currency of the Group. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit and equity
where the Hong Kong dollars strengthen 5% (2008:
5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2008: 5%)
weakening of the Hong Kong dollars against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit and equity, and the balances below would be
negative.

Profit or loss
Other equity

A s 18
HAthE 5
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A AT RE S B 2 REAN o BB o AT BT
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Impact of GBP

oL
2009 2008
S % BB
HK$7000 HK$’000
T Fittc
47 92
160 172
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk management

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
currently does not have a policy on hedges of interest rate
risk. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk through
its investment in available-for-sale investments. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
quoted in the Stock Exchange. In addition, the directors
closely monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 5% (2008: 5%) higher/lower,
investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$65,000 (2008: HK$209,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

At 30 June 2009, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

58

Ak T H (8)

(b) VA5 e I 4 B SR (4
5 (4)
U7 g B
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings,
the Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities which are
included in the maturity analysis provided internally to the
key management personnel for the purpose of managing
liquidity risk. The tables reflect the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows.

Less than
2009 e 2 5 1 year
VIR 4R
HK$’000
T#x
Non-derivative P o d
financial liabilities §=L
Trade and other payables HEf} WEak &
LAl REAT 3K 4,006

5. &K (8)
(b) B e e A P B B3R ()
13 1 8B (4

B 2 {5 PR R - 4T B2
7 M 1 SRR B 46T £ 5%
TR Z BT -

Wk AL B8 < A A R R A T T A e 2 R
7> R A7 FE A5 e B 4 o 2 A LA
7 4 o] Sl A e L At B R T 46 R 2 A5
JEBE o EWCR KBS SR Z ZEF
AT IR 2 AR AT 3 KM -

) B 2

e PR B Jm B Ty T > AR AR B B
LR R — k2 Bl RBLESHEY
1M 5% 7K T 75 8 B g 45 5y 2 DA A AR 4R
S B Nen] R B R B 2
.

MBS

AR EE S A S R R B A A
W > LR A E PR R ) T AR BN B R i
DA L3 B < LB B0 H R AT A e
TERRBEEMARZRITHAERE
% 4 4 B AR R A S T T REZH A K
ZEREAMDE - TREFHHERAE

Total Total carrying

Over  undiscounted amount at

1 year cash flows 30 June 2009
R RN

AP BLBLE AH=ZTH

o 14 WA i {8
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T#c T#x
— 4,006 4,006

Annual Report 2009 4t



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  WF# 8tk
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5 &BTHE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) B B B 45 B B B SR (%)

(continued)

Liquidity risk management (continued) G £ B (4

Liquidity tables (continued) T 2R (4E)

Total  Total carrying
Less than Over undiscounted amount at
2008 BTN 1 year 1 year cash flows 30 June 2008
i 2 IS
KT BLBL 4 ANH=1H
DI 14 MEAF  ZHRM(EAATT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F T F T F T F T
Non-derivative FEF A 4
financial liabilities A&

Trade and other payables  JEfJiEzk )

At REA 3K 4,553 — 4,553 4,553

Amount due to a minority  JEf}

shareholder JRE R IE 419 — 419 419

Fair value of financial instruments LB TRZ 2T

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are CHWEREIEMABZAFEIZUT Y

determined as follows: AEEE -

— the fair value of financial assets with standard terms — R AR A T ELTE TG B
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are sz iig EEEZGMEREZ
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices; ANVE » IZ2E Rz TS EAME
and MEE s &

— the fair value of other financial assets and financial —  H iR E ke R A R A TE
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally TR 1 e a2 e A (A
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash AR T 8558 5 2 B AR B L 3R i
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable AR o AR R ST BB 4 U 8 00 A
market transactions as inputs. JE o

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial HERE CMEERGHMABETS

assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated B 5 ) 3R A RE Bk 2 MR T (E 2 0 AP

financial statements approximate their fair values. fH -

Annual Report 2009 4k | TeleEye Holdings Limited T HIR#E A RA 53



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R 5 0 o W i

54

For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLH/NH =T HIEFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which includes
trade and other payables), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

Debt to equity ratio

The Group’s senior management reviews the capital structure on
a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the senior management
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital.

The debt to equity ratio at the year end was as follows:

Debt (i) f&IA (i)
Equity (ii) WELS (i)
Notes:

(i) Debt comprises trade and other payables as detailed in Note 20.

(ii)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the Company.
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2009 2008
“EREQA —
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
4,006 4,553
35,389 35,361
11.3% 12.9%
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SRR
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods WA FE AR B A 26 R 2 i %
sold, less returns and allowances, to outside customers during the WA TN KT 2 R 3K S B 2 3IH -
year.
In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the HRPEAS 4L | 2 R s B ¥Ry =0 > ALE e
Group has determined that geographical segment by location of DA F 2 BT AE i 2 b 1 53 04 77 H 32 B 2Ry
customers is its primary reporting format. 7L o
Geographical segment il 43 %51
The Group reports its primary segment information by AEBUEEF (EZAREE - A - H
geographical location of its customers who are principally located Al BRI ER 5~ R~ RN B FE ) 2 T AE Hh T
in Hong Kong, Singapore, other Asian countries, Middle East, P AR o HoAth 45 35 U B IR N 4
Europe and Africa. Others include locations like the Americas and o B EZ A R T 2 B R 2 AR
Australia. Segment information about these geographical markets
is presented below:
2009 —RBILE
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Africa Others  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
FAuniN
Fik g A% LU B W L) U i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#r Ti#r Titn Ti#r Ti#r Ti#tn Ti#r Ti#r Ti#r
REVENUE KA
External sales REMLHE 4,03 3,653 9918 9,095 13,578 9,362 1,960 - 52,502
Inter-segment sales MM 2 B - 841 948 - 7325 - - (9.114) -
Total et 4,936 4,494 10,866 9,095 20,903 9,362 1,960 (9,114) 52,502
SEGMENT RESULT ek | 1,878 178 2,031 2,809 2,066 3,364 585 - 12,911
Unallocated corporate income #1732 ARIEA 768
Unallocated corporate expenses A7 2 A dl & i
— Administrative and other  — F7EL R b R
EXpenses (7,515)
— Research and development — — B R B L
expenditure (4,478
Profit before taxation BB 1630
Income tax credit s kA 8
Profit for the year REEH 1,776

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark-up.
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLH/NH =T HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical segment (continued)

2009 (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical

location of its customers:

Other Asian
Hong Kong countries
HAbaiH
Fib %
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitr T
ASSETS {3
Segment assets ARG 351 934
Unallocated corporate assets FERZ N EE
Consolidated total assets GREE
LIABILITIES ffit
Segment liabilities MEAE 1,323 1,091
Unallocated corporate liahilities A&7z /Al A&
Consolidated total liabilities matmafk
Other Asian
Hong Kong Singapore countries
JAbTiH
Hik Fimsg A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitr Fitr Fitr
OTHER INFORMATION ~ H:At %
Capital additions BARE 131 - 5
Depreciation i 476 7 6
Capitalised development — BERAEA{L
costs 994 — —
Write down of inventories 77 &4 8 3 2
Allowance for bad and FER S
doubtful debts — — 2
Amortisation of capitalised B HUAE AL 2 3
development costs 555 — —

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR 54 R )

7. YRR (D

Hb it 43 %81 (4
“RBIUE (B
PATR 35 2 5 BT A 3 [ 0 7 22 23S 0 7 e 9
A IRE 2 h
Middle
East Europe Africa Others  Consolidated
L Lt #H ) Ba
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Ti#r T#r T#r Ti#br T#r
1,149 3,602 118 — 6,154
33,488
39,642
m 325 113 158 3,342
1,178
4520
Middle
East Europe Africa Others  Consolidated
L B A i B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#r T#r T#r T#r T#r
— 191 — — 320
— 287 — — 776
— — — — 994
2 28 2 5 110
23 429 2 — 486
— — — — 555
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical segment (continued)

2008

REVENUE
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total

SEGMENT RESULT

Unallocated corporate income

Unallocated corporate expenses
— Administrative and other

EXpenses

— Research and development
expenditure

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

7. SRER (8

bt 7 351 (48
SR
Other Asian Middle
Hong Kong  Singapore countries East Europe Africa Others ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
b
Hik s B% R B M i Hi e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T Tt T TH#T T T T Tt T
A

RAENFCHE 7528 4729 979 9397 19791 9678 1,982 - 62,898
IR e - 2504 509 - 9,865 - - (12,8%) -
st 1528 1253 10,302 9397 29,656 9678 1982 (12,898) 62,898
NS 1797 474 1142 3,375 3137 3791 454 - 14,770
KB ZARIRA 564

AR Z FER

— TR ER
(6,090)
— R RER

(4,606)
Fr Bt 4,638
FraB: (620)
AEEHE 4018

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage mark-up.

O ¥R 2 S AR A IR — o g (R A
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLF/NH =T HIEFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. YBUERH(ED)

Geographical segment (continued)

2008 (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets and segment liabilities, analysed by the geographical
location of its customers:

Other Asian

Hong Kong Singapore countries
HfbEzH

ik s %

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TH#T TH#T T#T

ASSETS B
Segment assets MEEE 944 1,210 991
Unallocated corporate assets A #1432 /A &

Consolidated total assets GAMERE
LIABILITIES Ak
Segment liabilities NEAE 1,940 148 596
Unallocated corporate FHn 2 AFAK
liahilities

Consolidated total liabilities %44 (&

Other Asian

Hong Kong Singapore countries
BRI

il Hilnsk %

HK$000  HK§000  HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt

OTHER INFORMATION ~ Hfitig#l

Capital additions EARE 1154 14 —
Depreciation BN 459 9 14
Capitalised development BRMAEAL

costs 798 = =
(Reversal of )/Provision for 8 & i (4

obsolete goods W) /B (15) ® 21
Write down of inventories 7 EHiis 146 80 319
Allowance for loan to an RYBEAFZE

associate B = = 1
Amortisation of capitalised Bt RMAE A2

development costs 3 1,268 = =

23 50 (41)

BTN ()

DAR B35 & 5 i e b [ ) 4 2 i BB 7 O
BEZIRHEZ 28T

Middle
East Europe Africa Others ~ Consolidated
PR el HEH Hl e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T TH#T T#T T#T T#T

@ 5,763 25 ©) 9,205
31,568
40,773
252 938 138 136 4,148
1,429
5,577

Middle
East Europe Africa Others ~ Consolidated
R B M o e

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tt Tt Tk Tk T

— 498 — — 1,666
— 190 — — 672
— — — — 798
(29) (54) (29) 1) 70
260 512 21 63 1,657
— — — — 1
— — — — 1,268
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Geographical segment (continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipment and

capitalised development costs analysed by the geographical area

in which the assets are located.

Hong Kong
Singapore

Other Asian countries

Europe

Business segments

At 53 g B K

vig ¥eg 1t )

B 2y 35 ()

VAT 2 % 7 T 7 I ) 0 2 0 U 7 2 IR
{H > LRWISE - DS B kot B A (L 3 R AR
ZIREZ M o

Carrying amounts
of segment assets

Additions to property,
plant and equipment and
capitalised development

W3 ~ W55 B St i BB p AR

3 J e Wi i i BALZRE
2009 2008 2009 2008
—REWF s —RENA 25
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x Ti#T T#x T
35,944 33,184 1,125 1,952
— 1,668 — 14
346 62 5 —
3,352 5,859 191 498
39,642 40,773 1,321 2,464

ES Vg |

The Group is solely engaged in research and development and
sales and marketing of video surveillance systems. No further
business segment information is presented as all of the Group’s

revenue, operating results and assets were attributable to this

business segment.

OTHER INCOME

Other income is analysed as follows:

Interest income from

— bank deposits

— loan to an associate

Dividend income from listed equity

securities

Fair value gain from equity on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Others

HARA Z 7 Hr T

WELFEE ZF Sl A

— BT
— BT

Al 2 K

b MR R IR B IA

Tt R 2
HE R A 3

oAt

Annual Report 2009 4k

ASE B ERE BHUR B R 2 BT 5T R B 3L ~ 3
BRTIGHER o HRAEEZFTAWRA - 58
KB MEEC AR R I 25
ot S5 0 BUE KL -

A A

2009 2008

R —BRF
HK$’000 HK$°000
Filb Fitt i
140 366

— 2

83 136

461 =

84 60

768 564

TeleEye Holdings Limited FHIR#ERA RA A
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9.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

Employee benefits expense (including
directors’ remuneration)

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Retirement benefits scheme contributions

Less: Amount capitalised as development
costs

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Bad debts written off

Allowance for loan to an associate

Amortisation of capitalised development
costs (included in research and
development expenditure)

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Reversal of provision for obsolete goods
(included in cost of sales)

Provision for obsolete goods
(included in cost of sales)

Write down of inventories
(included in cost of sales)

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

ERBLATAIEE
nex GEA) -

18 B 48 1B 52

(R HEEME)
Fra o T&E KA
AB AR M B R

B B IIEB A 2
KA

SRR

SRR
T2 S
BRRARAIL 2

H#ESH (T HABFTE S
BRI H)

3 GRS

VEN NG Pk

ME SR, (s ) 3%
SRR B
(EFIASERA)
SRR R
(EFIASERA)
AR (TS E RA)

H B BB 22 ) 2 e 1
HEYIE -~ s &
B < iR
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B B 1 1
2009 2008
CEFENAE TERE A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x FiEETL
15,405 14,857
629 809
16,034 15,666
(994) (798)
15,040 14,868
405 13
81 560
— 1
555 1,268
328 387
776 672
1,464 (148)
(141) —
— 70
110 1,657
5 —
70 —
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 10. K g H 4
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2008: 7) O EMTZ/(ZER/NE  74) HEL
directors were as follows: HZE4T :
2009 e 2 K3
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma Mr. Ho Dr. Chan Prof. Siu Prof. Ching ~ Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo  Cheung Fat Wan Chi  Pak Chung To David Total

AR RN WRARA WHENL  ERRBE BRhER SR it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000

T#z T#L T#L T#xz T#z T#7x T#x T#x

Fees ik — — — — 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments Fot 4
Salaries and other benefits 4 KA 4 2,628 1,082 1,142 187 — — - 5,039
Contributions to retirement  JE{RAEAGHEI {3
benefit scheme 12 12 12 — — — — 36
Total emoluments Bl 2,640 1,094 1,154 187 60 60 60 5,255
2008 —ETNEFE
Prof. Chan Dr. Ma Mr. Ho Dr. Chan Prof. Siu Prof. Ching~ Mr. Yu Hon
Chok Ki Chi Kit KaHo  Cheung Fat Wan Chi  Pak Chung To David Total
BIEAEER  RERML  MAERE  REEEL  BARER  BOMER  eEExs st

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T T Tt T Tt Tt T

Fees 1% - - - - 60 60 60 180
Other emoluments HoA 4
Salaries and other benefits 74 KA EA 2,129 608 703 187 — — — 3,627
Contributions to retirement B KAEAFH &1Lk
benefit scheme 12 12 12 — — — — 36
Total emoluments Ele 2,14 620 715 187 60 60 60 3,843
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

10.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The five highest paid individuals included three (2008: three)
directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2008: two)
individuals, which fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000
for each of the two years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008, were as
follows:

EY
BRI B

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2009 and 2008,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, no director waived any emoluments during the years
ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.

Annual Report 2009 4t

10.

B H 4 (A

RN ERm 2 AN Ed > GFARFEZ =1
(ZFERNE =) &R B L AR
B 42 R o HBR A2 (B E A - Wi fiz) A
B E R IUAE R R T N\ ESNH =1H
AE T R AR B A% 4R 22 B < A < 2 31,000,000 #5
I FEIEAE

2009 2008
—REMA “FFNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
874 1,150

68 147

942 1,297

IBE FFNAERFE/NFEANA=THIE
R {11 500 6 BE 1A > A R S ) o7 P < A
Z Nt (B H ) STAME TR 2 e 5 | B2
N TR B2 B 22 38 A i A A S B 2 R U
I B A oy A A BEOh > MBE FF
FUAER —FFNENA =+ H IRFRE > I f#
FIFEAEATIH &
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
The (credit)/expense comprises:

Hong Kong Profits Tax AU A5
Current year provision AR AR
Overprovision in prior year AT B AR AR
Other jurisdictions Al ] VA A [
Current year provision AR AR
Underprovision in prior year AR EE AN 2

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 26) TRAERLIH B (M 7126)
Taxation attributable to the Company and A<\ &) Az H: & /A 7]
JEAGBATE

its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2008:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in of derived
from Hong Kong for the year ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

11.

Annual Report 2009 4k

Fi B (M),
(HEIRD) /S A
2009 2008
ZERBIAE e Y
HK$’000 HK$7000
T Tl
200 332
(332) —
(132) 332
— 4
— 13
— 17
(132) 349
46 271
(86) 620

NBE BT NER -FENFESNH=TH IE
ERE S B AER Y HR F W E A SR A F
e 2 Ak RE SR R DL B % 16.5% (B E I\

4 : 16.5%) 5HHA o

A JHAth ] 3k W [ 7 A 2 TR ) % A T D i [

Z BB REE -

TeleEye Holdings Limited FHIR#ERA RA A
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 # % ~ %%

11.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.
The taxation (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to
the profit before taxation in the consolidated income statement as

follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of

16.5% (2008: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for tax purposes

Tax effect of income that is not taxable for

tax purposes
Utilisation of tax loss previously not
recognised

Overprovision in respect of prior years

Tax effect of tax loss not recognised

Tax effect of temporary timing difference

Tax effect on different tax rate of
operations in other jurisdictions

Taxation (credit)/expense for the year

JUEAH =1 HIEFEE

P £ 8L (3801 ) S (4)
AAEBE 2 BUIE () /S AT B AR A i ad R
2 BRBLATRE B IR AT
2009 2008
“EFNAE ZRE )\
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FiBor
o o iy 1 TR 1,690 4,638
F A H T 15 BB %£16.5%
(CF T4 116.5%) 1 H 2 BiIH 279 765
R RTNBLBH 32 2 B s F 2
427 477
PHEGRBUA 2 B 5 2
(568) (187)
B B v A 52 2 BLIE 4R
(18) (870)
R A B R AR (332) —
TR B IE s 48 2 B 7 28 80 162
0T R IR [H] 22 B 2 B 5 2 46 271
A FAth R A AE I KR8 S B R AR 2
T 288 — 2
AAEPE 2 BUE () S (86) 620
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BB
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AR ) 5 I R RE R N E A 5 I S A I
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is Wi s THARAE LA T BB

based on the following data:

2009 2008
“EFNAE ZETINAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x FiEo
Earnings Wi %
Profit for the year attributable to equity AN RE R A N
holders of the Company JRE A A4 B 1 1,874 3,997
000 000
T T
Numbers of shares [t B H
Weighted average number of ordinary MR &I AR A IR 2
shares for the purpose of basic 5 s N REST-25 B2
earnings per share 180,300 180,298
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares [ Y27 A fil ik S I 2 5 28 -
in respect of:
— Share options — F A 412 1,109
Weighted average number of ordinary FHA S R Ui i 2
shares for the purpose of diluted 58 AR N RESF-34) 8
earnings per share 180,712 181,407
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% ~ BB Bt s

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvements fixtures equipment vehicle Total
MEWERE  BEEEE oSS Vi At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T#C T#IC TH#T T
THE GROUP AL
COST JAR
At 1 July 2007 I EELELH—H 473 447 3,173 243 4,336
Exchange adjustments i 5t 2 9 3 30 — 42
Additions INE 323 387 493 463 1,666
Disposals e (394) @) (82) — (480)
At 30 June 2008 W CEE)NFSA=1H 411 833 3,614 706 5,564
Exchange adjustments HEE 5 e — (59) (119) — (178)
Additions NE — 175 152 — 327
Disposals HE = (272) (97) — (369)
Disposal of a subsidiary i a2 ) — — 97) — (97)
At 30 June 2009 R-ZZAEAA=ZTH 411 677 3,453 706 5,247
DEPRECIATION it
At 1 July 2007 RoEELFELH—H 473 47 2,614 182 3,686
Exchange adjustments [ 54, ) 2 9 3 28 — 40
Provided for the year ARAEFETHE 68 122 280 202 672
Eliminated on disposals A RF A (394) @ (79) — 477)
At 30 June 2008 W=FEENFRH=ZTH 156 538 2,843 384 3,921
Exchange adjustments I 5o 7 2 — 10 (59) — (70)
Provided for the year AR 107 227 287 155 776
Eliminated on disposals HEE RS B — (189) (88) — (277)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary H & it & /A ] R ey — — (86) — (86)
At 30 June 2009 REZBZFNEANZTH 263 565 2,897 539 4,264
CARRYING AMOUNTS T
At 30 June 2009 REZZNEANZTH 148 112 556 167 983
At 30 June 2008 REEFFNEANAZTH 255 295 771 322 1,643

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

13.

14.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

(CONTINUED)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the above items

of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives

and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,

using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

YK ~ W3 B il (4)

FA 3~ RS KA BT 2 R RO R
DAL 5 2k e LA T o A 0 e A A
Tl B (B (B A M B LAl > SRR ANT

Leasehold improvements  334% or over the lease term, MEY) 4B 33%/3% AR 5
whichever is shorter (DA 2 o )
Furniture and fixtures 20% 1A B 2 20%
Office equipment 20% — 33'/:% PN ] 20% — 33%/%
Motor vehicle 33Y:% IR 33Y:%
CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 14, BRWAE AL
Total
5k
HK$7000
FIT
THE GROUP AL H
COST L% S
At 1 July 2007 RoERLFEA—H 8,582
Additions NN 798
At 30 June 2008 M EENFEASH=Z1H 9,380
Additions ANIER 994
At 30 June 2009 REZFNEANH=TH 10,374
AMORTISATION B
At 1 July 2007 A EBELELH—H 7,135
Provided for the year AR B 1,268
At 30 June 2008 A RTINS H =1 H 8,403
Provided for the year ARAFEFE TR 555
At 30 June 2009 REZRNEANA=TH 8,958
CARRYING AMOUNTS TR
At 30 June 2009 R_ZFNIEANH=TH 1,416
At 30 June 2008 A FEENFRNH=Z1H 977

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using the

straight-line method over three years from the date it is available

for use.

The directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised

development costs at the balance sheet dates with reference to the

discounted future cash flows from the products developed. They

determined that no impairment loss is made at 30 June 2009 and

2008.

TR R B E 2 B AA » e Hal 6/ B
AT = AR ) DA B ARk 8 -

HFHROC2HOHBEMZITBRRB SR E
EH PR E AL SR A 2 R - 5%
R RFEAER-FFZNFEANA=1TH
Slf 488 e R R AL 4
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

15.

INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY

Unlisted investment, at cost

JEWHE > A

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2009 were as

follows:

Name of subsidiary

Bk 2 i 44 7

Signal Communications Holdings

Limited

SiCOM China Limited

SiCOM Europe Limited

SiCOM Far East Limited

SiCOM Japan Limited

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

s b
B B

BVI
S L B

BVI
SR LR

BVI
SRR LGS

BVI
SRR LR

BVI
SRR LTS

Annual Report 2009 4t

Issued and fully
paid up
ordinary

share capital/
registered
capital

CEIT R
HRBBA,
kA

HK$15,000,000

15,000,000% 7T

US$1
1670

US$1
e

Us$1
B

us$1
IE

15. JRHEA W Z B ¥
The Company

A

2009 2008
“EEIAE S 29X
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT Tt

10 10

RERFRESA=Z+H > ALARIBARZ
BT

Proportion of nominal value of

issued capital/registered Principal
capital held by the Company activities
AR R 2 BT A
e AR Z I R
Directly Indirectly
H% iE 3
% %
100 — Investment
holding
id ezl
— 100 Investment
holding
BOEHE
— 100 Investment
holding
BETER
— 100 Investment
holding
Eyd<gLdile
— 100 Investment
holding
Eyd<gLdile
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

15. INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiary

Bk 2 s 44 7

Signal Communications Limited
TRRBARAR

TeleEye Europe Limited

TeleEye Solutions Limited
TRRMERGARAH

TR EAESRLE (BRI
F BRI (Note) (M)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operation

b S
B BB

Hong Kong
s

The United
Kingdom
g

Hong Kong

The People’s
Republic of
China

(the “PRC”)
e \ R
(TehEd )

Issued and fully
paid up
ordinary

share capital/
registered
capital
CETRAR
B Be A,
wEMEEE A

HK$1,000
1,000% 7t

GBP100
1009 8%

HK$10
10¥#7T

US$130,000
130,000% 7T

Note: The company is registered in the form of a wholly foreign owned

enterprise.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

Annual Report 2009 4k

15, JRHHE A F) 2 B (4)

Proportion of nominal value of
issued capital/registered
capital held by the Company

hARA R Z OB A
kM AR 2 T F B
Directly Indirectly

H% GiE 3
% %

— 100

= 100

— 100

Principal
activities

EXE 3

Research and
development
and sales and
marketing
of video
monitoring
systems

HEERRS
WS e B
T SH8 BTy
e

Sales and
marketing
of video
monitoring
systems

HEEERS
ZHER
5 B

Inactive

TEER

Production,
sales and
marketing
of video
monitoring
systems

HGEERAGZ
BT
T &

BFE - W R LASI R A S 2 T R

A A A JE R 58 IRl BOAS A JEE Al IS (] 1 > AT

R LA £ 317 2 (S 5 -
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong ik e 2

At the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments are
stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been
determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

17. INVENTORIES

Raw materials JEA
Finished goods B R

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JRE WA Hi 2K

Less: Accumulated allowances W BT

Other receivables HoAth B Wi K

Total trade and other receivables JRE g B sk B HoAth B R A

70 TeleEye Holdings Limited THRFEBARAT | Annual Report 2009 4F#

16.

17.

18.

w3k i B
The Group
AL
2009 2008
—e =% 2 ZERTNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#7 Tl
1,305 4,179

EEFE R > BT A AL BUE DA E S
IR o ZERE LN TETIZ B HE RIS T
HAfE A o

18
The Group
AR
2009 2008
e 2 %2 e = A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#T
1,945 2,592
4,458 5,067
6,403 7,659
B BB ik e s WSk
The Group
AR

2009 2008
e = %2 “ETNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7 Tl
4,494 6,457
(521) (116)
3,973 6,341
2,103 2,012
6,076 8,353
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

18.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date prepared on
the basis of payment due date of sales invoice:

Current R4 3k
1 to 3 months overdue w12 3(M A
More than 3 months overdue 70 30T 4t 3 H

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
trade customers. The Group trade receivables are individually
determined to be impaired.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired

1 to 3 months overdue 1% 3 A
More than 3 months overdue 76 T At 3 H

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

18, HEMCR sk Be Uil ME ok (48)
ARS8 B S 2 B AR B A S e T
FH O 2 B SRR AR (1 B e BR B A R i 20 AT A

T

The Group
AR

2009 2008
R T\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x THEoT
3,510 4,255
463 1,372
— 714
3,973 6,341

ARG T HE S EF 430 H ZfFHEH - &
4 B 2 MBS AR T 1R 9l e E S (E -
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30 A0 206 00 AL 2 M VB MR sk 2 IR
The Group
AR

2009 2008
R BT\
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x TFiEoT
463 1,372
— 714
463 2,086

A% 2 [0 310 S 9 5% 45 4% R R A AT AT HEA o
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18.

19.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

EYRG B
2 it R A i (A R

Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment losses recognised on

receivables
Bad debts written off as uncollectible AN AT & [ T i o 35 R
Balance at end of the year R S

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with a balance of approximately
HK$521,000 (2008: HK$116,000) which were past due and not
recoverable. The impairment recognised represents the difference
between the carrying amount of these trade receivables and the
present value of the expected cash inflows. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

1 to 3 months overdue a1 % 31 A
More than 3 months overdue 7a0 34T 4t 3 H
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19.

Bank balances and cash comprises cash and short-term bank
deposits held by the Group and the Company with an original
maturity of three months or less. The deposits carry fixed interest
rate from 0.01% to 4.6% per annum (2008: 1.7% to 5.15%).

Annual Report 2009 4t

JHE VB S sk B Gl BBk (48)
R M 58 A 422 )
The Group
AR
2009 2008
R T\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x THEoT
116 103
486 573
(81) (560)
521 116

SR B 18 A 6 6 A8 T I 0 2 A RR R &S R A0
521,000 i 7T (= ZEZ /\4F : 116,000 #57C) > T3
i KA RRIRI] o O RERR IR (B 1 5% 55 ME WUHR K
2 W T (L BEL VR M B A 2 BUE T 2 [ 2 2%
FH o AR BN Mk 5% 55 A5 SR A A AT AT 4G 5 o

O I M B R ik 2 M i
The Group
A
2009 2008
e 2 %2 “ETNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#% T
15 —
506 116
521 116
BUTHI B R B

SRATAE R R S A AL H AN R 2
B4 T A R i =1 =k DA A B 3 2 S R AT A
Koo fEFKIE0.01% & 4.6% (—FE)NLE : 1.7%

%5.15%) 2 [ E AR FHE, »
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20.

21.

22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
approximately HK$1,972,000 (2008: HK$2,392,000). The
following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance
sheet date prepared on the basis of payment due date of supplier’s

invoice:

Current EIRIERE

1 to 3 months overdue 1% 31 A
More than 3 months overdue i A AR AR 3R A

The average credit period on purchases is 1 month.

AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER
The Group

The balance was unsecured, non-interest bearing and was
repayable on demand.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
repayable on demand.

20.

21.

22.

JRE A VB sk B Gt MEE £+ 5k

JRE A5 MR R B A BB AN 3K 6 4R E AT IR SR A
1,972,000 #570 (—FF/\4E © 2,392,000 70) °
T G5 TA H ek e v 8 22 2 B A4 3k H A 2 L e
T w3 2 REAT R MRS A an

The Group
A

2009 2008
“REAE ZREBINE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FiET
1,623 1,830
227 511
122 51
1,972 2,392

RIS HE R A LEA -

HEASE 2 B B K I

S .|

%S5 A R IR AT~ R EER KRR SR BRI
2 .

B 0 2 il sk I
Al
%% R T A S TR R 4 SR T £

i,

I3 ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

24.

23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. BEA
Number of shares Share capital
JBe i S H JBe Ax
2009 2008 2009 2008
“FFE ZEBT)\F BB e = G2
’000 ’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TR T#x T
Authorised: 2 A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 4% H{E0.014k T~
each S 30 800,000 800,000 8,000 8,000
Issued and fully paid: ELEEA T B AL AR
At beginning of year HEH] 180,300 180,240 1,803 1,802
Exercise of share options A7 {58 B LA — 60 — 1
At end of year AL 180,300 180,300 1,803 1,803
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 24. Vi JBAE
(i) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-1PO Scheme”) (i) $ B G o SRR 3B (I T i Do JB R it ) 1)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

The Pre-IPO Scheme was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 12 April 2001 to recognise the contribution of
executive directors and employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries to the growth of the Group. The options
granted under the scheme grant the right to the holder
to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company at
HK$0.60 per ordinary share and the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options might be granted under
the scheme was 14,400,000. The number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted to any individual was not
permitted to exceed 3,600,000.

Options might be granted without any initial payment.
Options granted are exercisable to the extent of an aggregate
total of 25%, 50%, 75% and 100% at anytime after 6 months,
18 months, 30 months and 42 months, respectively, from the
commencement of the trading of the shares of the Company
on the GEM, and have a duration of 10 years from their
respective vesting dates.

Upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM on
8 May 2001, no further options could be granted by the
Company under the Pre-IPO Scheme. The rights of the
holders of the share options granted prior thereto are not
affected and such options granted continue to remain valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the scheme.

Annual Report 2009 4t
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14,400,000 Ji& o T2 T AEAT A 1 2 W RO RE
W e 2 ey BB A 15 i 3,600,000 % o

W e R A 317 o S AT AT 0 25 K T 2 0L
AR AT T o W ROHE AE A Ty
AR SE AR B 16 B A% o AT 40 Bl AE W 6 R
H o~ 1818 H ~ 3018 H K42l H 2 & 2
AR AT IR ] A > B AT A 6 2 A i e
H4%H 2 25% > 50% ~ 75% M 100% ° % %F
WEREHE & B 2 B H LS 104F N A
B o
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24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-1PO Scheme”)

0

(continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options under the Pre-IPO Scheme during the years
ended 30 June 2009 and 2008.

Directors of
the Company

AR

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
BRAFAE AU

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
o7

Mr. Ho Ka Ho
(IPE Sista

Employees of the Group

A EEMIER

Exercise

price per

Date of grant share

AR BRATHM

HK$

T

12 April 2001 0.60
=t

12 April 2001 0.60
“EE AR

12 April 2001 0.60
“RE AR

12 April 2001 0.60
“RE— AT

24.  WEIBCHEH I (&)
(i) S0 TG B st alh) (T4 M i Do D i s 389 1)
(%)

TR E R R ZF TN
NHZ A H IR AE B AR B R AT B R

FTHIA L F 2 IR 2 BB o
Forfeited Movement Balance at
Balance at during Balance at during 30 June
1 July 2007 the year 30 June 2008 the year 2009
RoRR LA REZRNE REZFNAE
tH—H RAEER  AR=TH AEEN  AAZTH
2 &t Bl Z itk 28 25tk

(Note)
(ML)

1,800,000 — 1,800,000 — 1,800,000
1,440,000 — 1,440,000 — 1,440,000
1,364,000 — 1,364,000 — 1,364,000
4,604,000 — 4,604,000 — 4,604,000
2,056,000 (884,000) 1,172,000 — 1,172,000
6,660,000 (884,000) 5,776,000 — 5,776,000

No options had been exercised since the date of grant. At 30
June 2009, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted under the Pre-IPO Scheme represents 3.2%
(2008: 3.2%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that

date.

Note: These options forteited upon the resignation of the grantees.

B 4% H R A B R AT o R TR
JUEN A =1 H o RIS E B s B b w3 4% 1
Z WIS Te 2 Iy BB G A 5% H A A R 2 3%
Ty 2 3.2% (ZFFI\AE  3.2%) -

MfaE < BCEE AR A AR IR N BT AR DR
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 # % ~ %%

JUEAH =1 HIEFEE

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

(i)

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the
“2003 Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003,
the 2003 Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and
motivate the contribution of the employees and to provide
incentives and help the Company in retaining its existing
employees and recruiting additional employees for a term
of ten years. The board of directors of the Company may
at its discretion grant options to any employees, including
executive and non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
agents, contractors, customers and suppliers of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Option may be granted
at a consideration of HK$1 and should be accepted within 5
business days from the date of grant. The option granted is
exercisable upon acceptance of and payment of consideration
by the grantee and have a duration of 10 years from their
respective vesting dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company on 28 October 2003. No option shall
be granted to a grantee if the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to be
granted under the 2003 Option Scheme in any twelve months
period up to and including the date of grant to such grantee
would exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being in issue.

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Daily Quotation Sheets on the date of grant, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Daily Quotation
Sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.
Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options in respect of
which the subscription price is fixed at different price.
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(ii)

R ERR AR A\ HIRAZ B
BT ([ =22 = ARt )

MBER _FF=FF+A_tA\AERZ
PR > AR FRA T =R
at o DURERD K A B R B AR A AR
HE R > WAL R BUA R B4 T A2

Fi5 LAt B 5 B A > DL AR ISAE IS+
FZHIMER - AR FEFGAIE R

A A 4 B 432t 0 B (4 A 48 B 2
TTEBERIFNTES  HE - M- A
B R - A AU DR IEA S
R A o MR AT DUACE 1 oo > I
JRE A5 1 400 R T8 2 IR A o
TE TR IR He A B S A AU W > S A D7
AT DT > HA RO A B 2 R
H R 2 10 4F -

Ti‘%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%zaﬁ%w%{a N5
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B E AT IEAS 2 10% o 4 78 AT e - =8 H
) B 5 T ROME T Rz B N H (L
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HEAEAT GG T 8847 2 IR KA B> Ba
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLHNH =1+ HIEFE

24. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 24. ik BEAE T ) (%)
(i) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the (i) MRFZZAETH N BRI BhE
“2003 Option Scheme”) (continued) B ([ =2 =AW RehE T3 1) (%)

TREFVRE_FTNER_FTTIE
ANA=Z+HIEFEERAARFARE -TF
= A B R R B AR 2 M A ) R

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the
years ended 30 June 2008 and 2009:

1
Balance Exercised Balance Movement Balance
Exercise at during at during at
Directors of the price per 1 July the 30 June the 30 June
Company Date of grant share 2007 year 2008 year 2009
RERR L RERRNE BRI
tH—H BEER  AAZETH REEN  ARETH
AT HES AR BRATHED 25tk [REiY}d Z &tk 28 25tk
HK$
B
Prof. Chan Chok Ki 4 August 2004 0.145 900,000 — 900,000 — 900,000
BRAERZR “EREMEN A
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 4 August 2004 0.145 720,000 — 720,000 — 720,000
B —ZFNE\RIH
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 4 August 2004 0.145 680,000 — 680,000 — 680,000
IR FE A ZZEmE\HINH
2,300,000 — 2,300,000 — 2,300,000
Employees of the Group 4 August 2004 0.145 140,000 (60,000) 80,000 — 80,000
AR ZZFNE\HIH
2,440,000 (60,000 2,380,000 — 2,380,000

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before 4 August 2004 (date of grant of the above options)
was HK$0.145. At 30 June 2008, the number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted under the 2003
Option Scheme represents 1.3% (2008: 1.3%) of the shares
of the Company in issue at that date.

The 60,000 share options exercised during the year ended
30 June 2008 resulted in the issue of 60,000 ordinary shares
of the Company and new share capital of HK$600 and share
premium of HK$8,100 (before issue expenses), as further
detailed in Note 23 to the financial statements.

The weighted average closing price per share immediately
before the date on which the option for 60,000 shares was
exercised (i.e. 12 July 2007) was HK$0.42.
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SR T RPUAE A U H (A iR 2 B2
H # ) mi A< A &) B 40y 2 Wi T (8 £ 0.145 % It -
R EENENAZTH RFE_TT =4
T P8 T o 2 I M O B 2 I O A R
#% H AR A B8 AT R 2 1.3% (=& F )4 ¢
1.3%) °

B e 5 B Rk 23 3 — Bl » R E ZF
Z\AFEZN H =+ H R4 B N7 2 60,000 175
Ji HE 2B 350 %% 17 60,000 [ 48 2 7] - 4 i K i
75 600 V5 70 M % ¥4 1 8,100 ¥ T (R 513517 B
) o

195 I 60,000 % B0y 2 B B AE AT (5 H 2 (BR

SEREFELEELHA ) §i 2 & B RET Bk
MifE £ 0.42 T -
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25. RESERVES 25. il fhi
Share Retained
premium profits Total
JBe o e A PR % AU A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#T For
THE COMPANY AN
At 1 July 2007 Mo EELELH—H 21,638 607 22,245
Issue of ordinary shares upon FAAT {68 B R By
exercise of share options BT 228 8 — 8
Profit for the year AR FE A — 1,111 1,111
At 30 June 2008 MWoEZFNEANH=1H 21,646 1,718 23,364
Loss for the year A s 18 — (150) (150)
At 30 June 2009 R=ZZIEAA=ZTH 21,646 1,568 23,214
26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. JEHEBLH

T STEAEE FOBEEE - DR T2k
IERLIE (G ) /A BB R -

The following are the major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

years:
Accelerated Capitalised
tax development Tax
depreciation costs losses Total
ImA BT BERORA G A Be sl st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEIT THTT T THoT
THE GROUP A
At 1 July 2007 A TEBELH—H — 253 (253) —
Expense/(credit) to income M za R FIER S GEA)
statement 110 (92) 253 271
At 30 June 2008 A ETNFESNH=Z1H 110 161 — 271
(Credit)/expense to income g iR (FFA) /F1ER
statement (27) 73 — 46
Decrease of deferred tax (K] H B o 2 )
liability in respect of AL B 2 20 S0 3 T U 2
disposal of a subsidiary 3) — — 3)
At 30 June 2009 REFRISEAA=TH 80 234 — 314
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26.

DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 30 June 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$4,965,000 (2008: HK$4,755,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such losses of approximately HK$4,965,000 (2008:
HK$4,755,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of
approximately HK$1,764,000 (2008: HK$1,292,000) that will
expire in 2013 through 2014. The remaining tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2009, the Group has no other deductible temporary
differences (2008: Nil).

26. YEHEBLIE (41)

A EEJUAENA = H > A [ R A 1R
S AR AR 2 1 A B8 FH B T s 1R 44 £ 4,965,000
W0 (- FE U 4,755,000 % 6 ) o B R
RE TE 5T & 2 R A U8 > 5 1 kA B s 4R 40
4,965,000 #5 7T (= & & J\4F @ 4,755,000 ¥ T )
Tl R R AL ot T 2 o i oA R 0 TEL s 98 £ 65 M
HA7 1,764,000 % 70 (- FE/\4F ¢ 1,292,000 #
Jt) > M ZF SR AR -
I ol T e 15 T T PR A

R TEZRIENH = H o A N 28 H A AT
NI e A (B )\ ;) o
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27.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR A R

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 2 March 2009, the Group had disposed of 51% equity interest
in its subsidiary, TeleEye (S) Pte Limited, for a consideration of

Singapore dollars $6,000.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were as

follows:

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liability

Minority interests
Release of translation reserve

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Total consideration satisfied by cash

Net cash outflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration received
Bank balances and cash disposed of

Annual Report 2009 4t

27. WMEWBAA
R EBESUAE=H U H > A4 H LU E 6,000
B B o6 B H Kt & 4§ TeleEye (S) Pte
Limited 2 51% B ASHEZS ©
MHE AR EH I Z FEEWT ¢
2009
ZRZHAE
HK$’000
T
BT EE
Y2 ~ W Bt 11
i 412
JHRE W i 3k e LAt Wi 3R 891
SRATHE I LB 4 351
IR A R 3 e A JEE A K (1,612)
R SE R TE A ()
50
D B R 25 (25)
fife % BEE 5 £t £ 11
B E A\ 2 B4R (5)
DAB 4 2 AF 2 daA A 31
W A 2 H A A
S B 4 AR 31
0 B aRAT A R S 4 (351)
(320)
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28.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined
contribution retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme. No forfeited contributions are available to reduce
contributions payable in future years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute 8% of the
basic salary of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit is to make the specified contribution.

In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit
schemes, the subsidiary in the United Kingdom is required to
contribute to National Insurance Contributions for certain of its
employees in the United Kingdom based on applicable rates in
accordance with the relevant government regulations.

The total costs charged to income statement of approximately
HK$629,000 (2008: HK$753,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting
period.

28.
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IR BRI K E - 8T AR B %
I ZH S BLRIHE E Z He A st sk - i i
FEEIT & A 4R B R & A B R AT K o A
AR [0 3107 0 TP A9 0 R AR B R AR 3t sk 2 i
K -

AL TA B 2 I o W 2 R B A B A R
AR R EH B 2 R > a3 i b B O S -
Wi T 2 ) 2 3% IR HL R B AR 387 4 2 8% [ AR A
i A A AR o MR AT S - A
A B FURAE 4 2 1K -

5% 2 Bl b lodR IR AR A S AN R B B 2
J& N ) ZE AR R A B O R B R L R
£y Hojjh 35 2 %7 T & & 1l National Insurance
Contributions fit#k o

TE R £ 2% TN 11 R 2 B8R AS 4 629,000 5 70 (%
/N 1 753,000 ¥ J0) /£ A8 58 [ g A e w0 R
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For the year ended 30 June 2009 #& % “FZJLH/NH =T HIEFE

29. OPERATING LEASES

Minimum lease payments made under
operating leases in respect of premises

during the year

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

in respect of premises which fall due as follows:

Within one year

In the second to fifth years inclusive

More than five years

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average of three
years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T H iR 54 R )

TAARAEBE R AR SR AT B ) 26
Z REER RS 2 RARFH A &

29.

RERA KB
The Group
AL
2009 2008
e 2 %2 “ETNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#7 Tl
1,430 1,546

TEEH AR  B  2 R B A
FELA0 T 281 76 o A 2 2 SR L A0 L 22 AR
WIEEETE

The Group
A S

2009 2008
R BRI\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T Fioc
—4ER 1,197 1,186
BESERE (FRMAEEIEENR) 586 1,272
FAEAR — 230
1,783 2,688
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. WEALRY
The Group
A S
2009 2008
e £ 9K 2 e = A2
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x Fi#EL
Sales to an associate T B A ) e — 64
Interest income from loan to an associate B TH A R B LS A — 2
Service fee to City University of Hong Kong [l #e AT R ( [k R ] )
(“City University™) SR B 2 70 74
Scholarship donation to City University [ 3k T RG24 R A L 4 72 66

CityU Enterprises Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of City
University, holds a 30% interest in Etin City Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

47 Etin City Limited (4 7l 2 1% iy s
—) 3096 H 2 2 A A 2 A7 LA 7D T kA
2 2B A T -

R B2 i
HRE N EEEABREN ST

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

The Group
AR

2009 2008
ZRBRAE ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# Fior
Short-term benefits g HAtE A 5,219 4,777
Post-employment benefits Rk A% 4 | 36 72
5,255 4,849

HR N EEATEN B Z M5 & B e R
% AR B R B R T AR E -

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.
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S IR

RESULTS
E 3

Revenue

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

(Loss)/profit for the year
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
B & FLR

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Minority interests

84  TeleEye Holdings Limited THHHE A RA
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BRBLHT (B5R) FH
FRASBL (32,1 [l

A (H),FIE
B RS LA

Ao B A A
DB R 2

A F HERFA A
JEA 2 i 2
DB R 2
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Year ended 30 June
BEAH=1THIL4EE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
SERERE ZRTAE CTTEE CTBAE DRIE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000

T T T T T#xL

27,492 37,356 46,635 62,898 52,502

(3,500) (209) 2,146 4,638 1,690

— — — (620) 86

(3,500) (209) 2,146 4,018 1,776

(3,284) (273) 2,087 3,997 1,874

(216) 64 59 21 (98)

(3,500) (209) 2,146 4,018 1,776

At 30 June
WAA=1H

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
SEEBHE SRTAE FRULE SFBE SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T Tt Tt T T#

33,291 34,118 35,671 40,773 39,642

(4,248) (5,334) (4,400) (5,577) (4,520)

29,043 28,784 31,271 35,196 35,122

29,339 29,032 31,483 35,361 35,389

(296) (248) (212) (165) (267)

29,043 28,784 31,271 35,196 35,122
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